

LYDALL INC /DE/
Form DEFR14A
April 08, 2015

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

(Rule 14a-101)

INFORMATION REQUIRED IN

PROXY STATEMENT

SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. 1)

Filed by the Registrant ☐

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant ☐

Check the appropriate box:

☐	☐	Preliminary Proxy Statement
☐	☐	Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
☐	☐	Definitive Proxy Statement
☐	☐	Definitive Additional Materials
☐	☐	Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

Lydall, Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

b		No fee required.
..	Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.	
(1)	Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:	

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5) Total fee paid:

..

Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1)

Amount Previously Paid:

(2)

Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:

(3)

Filing Party:

(4)

Date Filed:

**SUPPLEMENT TO PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE
2015 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 24, 2015**

The following information relates to the proxy statement (the “*Proxy Statement*”) of Lydall, Inc. (“*Lydall*” or the “*Company*”, “*we*”, “*us*” or “*our*”), a Delaware corporation, as filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “*SEC*”) and furnished to stockholders of the Company in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Company’s board of directors (the “*Board*”) for the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “*Annual Meeting*”). All capitalized terms used in this supplement to the Proxy Statement (this “*Supplement*”) and not otherwise defined herein have the respective meanings ascribed to such terms in the Proxy Statement. This Supplement, which amends the Proxy Statement, is being filed with the SEC and being made available to stockholders of the Company on April 8, 2015.

The Company will hold the Annual Meeting as originally scheduled on April 24, 2015. The proposals included in the Proxy Statement will be presented to stockholders for consideration at the Annual Meeting. Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on February 27, 2015 are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting.

The Proxy Statement contains important additional information, and this Supplement should be read in conjunction with the Proxy Statement.

**CHANGE TO
PROPOSAL 2 — APPROVAL OF RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION**

Proposal 2 to be voted on at the Annual Meeting relates to the approval of amendments to Lydall’s current Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “*Current Charter*”). After taking into consideration input from a proxy advisory firm following the filing of the Proxy Statement, on April 6, 2015, the Board revised Proposal 2 to eliminate the originally proposed changes to Section 6(a) of the Current Charter regarding the election of directors. As a result, as provided in the Current Charter, only stockholders will have the authority to fill vacancies on the Board that result from an increase in the number of members of the Board.

To reflect this change, Proposal 2 as appearing in the Proxy Statement is amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:

**PROPOSAL 2 — APPROVAL OF RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION**

The Board of Directors is recommending amending and restating the current Restated Certificate of Incorporation (the “*Current Charter*”) of the Company in order to consolidate existing provisions and make certain further revisions as described below.

The Current Charter was filed on August 26, 1987 and amended on May 14, 1992 and May 12, 1993. Certificates of Correction and a Certificate of Elimination were filed on December 22, 2014. The restated certificate of incorporation (the “*Restated Certificate*”) consolidates and integrates all of the previous amendments, restatements and certificates into a single document.

The Restated Certificate also amends the Current Charter to:

specifically set forth the total number of shares of stock which the Company is authorized to issue (without changing such number);

reduce the par value of the shares of capital stock of the Company;

eliminate mandatory indemnification of employees or agents and only retain the obligation of indemnification by the Company for its officers and directors; and

make other minor corrections and clarifications.

A copy of the Restated Certificate indicating all of the proposed amendments is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

**THE BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS
VOTE “FOR” THE APPROVAL OF THE RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION.**

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

IF YOU HAVE ALREADY VOTED AND DO NOT WISH TO CHANGE YOUR VOTE, YOU DO NOT NEED TO DO ANYTHING. YOUR VOTE WILL BE TABULATED AS YOU PREVIOUSLY INSTRUCTED. You may revoke your proxy with respect to any matter to be voted on at the Annual Meeting at any time before the vote is taken

on such matter. A proxy may be revoked at any time before it is exercised by: (a) notifying Lydall's Corporate Secretary in writing; (b) delivering a proxy with a later date; or (c) attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Any written notice of revocation may be delivered to: Lydall, Inc., P.O. Box 151, Manchester, CT 06045-0151, Attention: General Counsel. Alternatively, you may hand deliver a written revocation notice, or a later dated proxy, to the Corporate Secretary at the Annual Meeting before the voting begins. Please refer to the Proxy Statement for more information about how to cast or change your vote.

In connection with the Annual Meeting, we previously filed our Proxy Statement with the SEC and commenced mailing our Proxy Statement and proxy card to our stockholders on March 17, 2015. **Before making any voting decision, you are urged to read the Proxy Statement and all related proxy materials carefully. Copies of the Proxy Statement and all other proxy materials are available at <http://www.lydall.com> and by clicking on Investor Relations.**

If you have any questions about our Proxy Statement, this Supplement or our Annual Meeting, or if you need assistance with the voting procedures, including casting or changing your vote, you should contact Chad A. McDaniel, *Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary*, at (860) 646-1233.

April 8, 2015

EXHIBIT A

RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF

LYDALL, INC.

The present name of the corporation is Lydall, Inc. The corporation was incorporated by the filing of its original Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on August 26, 1987. This Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation, which restates and integrates and also further amends the provisions of the corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 242 and 245 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. The Certificate of Incorporation of the corporation is hereby amended, integrated and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

Article 1. The name of the corporation is Lydall, Inc. and is sometimes hereinafter referred to as the "Company."

Article 2. The address of the Company's registered office in the State of Delaware is National Registered Agents, Inc., 160 Greentree Drive, Suite 101, City of Dover, County of Kent 19904 and the name of the Company's registered agent at such address is National Registered Agents, Inc.

Article 3. The nature of the business to be transacted and the purposes to be promoted or carried out by the Company are ~~as follows:~~ To do to conduct a general manufacturing business and to engage in any other lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

Article 4. The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Company shall have authority to issue is 30,500,000 shares. The designation of each class of stock, the authorized number of shares of each such class, and the par value of each share thereof, are as follows:

Designation	Authorized Number of Shares	Par Value
Common Stock	30,000,000	\$ 1.00
Preferred Stock	500,000	\$ 1.00 <u>.01</u>

Article 5. The terms, limitations and relative rights and preferences of each class of shares and series thereof and an express grant of authority to the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 151 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware are as follows:

(a) The holders of the Common Stock shall each be entitled to one vote per share.

(b) The Board of Directors is authorized, subject to any limitations prescribed by law, to provide for the issuance of the shares of Preferred Stock in series, and by filing a certificate pursuant to the applicable law of the State of Delaware, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each such series, and to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights of the shares of each such series and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof. The number of authorized shares of Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the Common Stock, without a vote of the holders of the Preferred Stock, or of any series thereof, unless a vote of any such holders is required pursuant to the certificate or certificates establishing the series of Preferred Stock.

Article 6.

(a) The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than three (3) nor more than fifteen (15) Directorships; the exact number of such Directorships to be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. Each Director shall be elected for a term of one (1) year or until the first annual meeting thereafter and until another shall be elected in his stead. In the event the number of members of the Board is increased, the newly created directorships shall be filled by a vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of the capital stock entitled to vote in elections of Directors.

(b) The affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds (2/3) of the voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote in elections of Directors, voting together as a single class, with each share of Common Stock having one vote and other shares having the number of votes to which such shares are entitled, shall be required for the removal, with or without cause, by stockholders, of any Director from the Board of Directors. ~~Such affirmative vote or consent of the stockholders shall be in addition to the vote or consent of the holders of stock of the Company otherwise required by law or any agreement between the Company and any national securities exchange.~~

(c) Unless and except to the extent that the By-laws of the Company shall so require, the election of directors of the Company need not be by written ballot.

Article 7. Notwithstanding any other ~~provisions~~ provision of this Certificate of Incorporation or the By-Laws of the Company (and notwithstanding that a lesser percentage may be specified by law or the By-Laws of the Company), no provision of this Certificate of Incorporation shall be repealed or amended in any respect, nor shall any new provision be added to this Certificate of Incorporation unless such action is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote in elections of Directors, voting together as a single class with each share of Common Stock having one vote and other shares having the number of votes to which such shares are entitled.

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the laws of the State of Delaware, the Board of Directors of the Company is expressly authorized to make, alter and repeal the By-laws of the Company.

Article 8. A Director of the Company shall not be personally liable to the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a Director, except for liability (i) for any breach of the Director's duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 of the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, or (iv) for any transaction from which the Director derived any improper personal benefit. If the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware is amended after approval by the stockholders of this article to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the personal liability of Directors, then the liability of a Director of the Company shall be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent permitted by the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as so amended.

Any repeal or modification of the foregoing paragraph ~~by the stockholders of the Company~~ shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a Director of the Company ~~existing at hereunder in respect of any act or omission occurring prior to~~ the time of such repeal or modification.

Article 9.

(a) Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a "proceeding"), by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a Director, or officer, ~~employee or agent~~ of the Company or while a Director or officer of the Company, is or was serving at the request of the Company as a Director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an employee benefit plan (hereinafter an "indemnatee"), ~~whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a Director, officer, employee or agent or in any other capacity where serving as a Director, officer, employee or agent~~, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company to the fullest extent authorized by the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the Company to provide broader indemnification rights than permitted prior thereto), against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such indemnatee in connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue as to an indemnatee who has ceased to be a Director, or officer, ~~employee or agent~~ and shall inure to the benefit of the indemnatee's heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in paragraph (b) hereof with respect to proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the Company shall indemnify any such indemnatee in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such indemnatee only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article shall be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the Company the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an "advancement of expenses"); provided, however, that, if the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by an indemnatee in his or her capacity as a Director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnatee, including, without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery to the Company of an undertaking (hereinafter an "undertaking"), by or on behalf of such indemnatee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal (hereinafter a "final adjudication") that such indemnatee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Article or otherwise.

(b) If a claim under paragraph (a) of this Article is not paid in full by the Company within sixty days after a written claim has been received by the Company, except in the case of a claim for an advancement of expenses, in which case the applicable period shall be twenty days, the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Company to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in whole or in part in any such suit, or in a suit brought by the Company to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to an advancement of expenses) it shall be a defense that, and (ii) in any suit by the Company to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the Company shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. Neither the failure of the Company (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such suit that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, nor an actual determination by the Company (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by the indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification or to any advancement of expenses hereunder, or by the Company to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified, or to such advancement of expenses, under this Article or otherwise shall be on the Company.

(c) The rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses conferred in this Article shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, this certificate of incorporation, by-law, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested Directors or otherwise.

(d) The Company may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any Director, officer, employee or agent of the Company or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such ~~person~~ against such expense, liability or loss under the ~~Delaware~~ General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

[Signature Page Follows]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lydall, Inc. has caused this Restated Certificate of Incorporation ~~which restates and integrates and further amends the provisions of the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, having been duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Sections 242 and 245 of the Delaware General Corporation Law has been signed by Leonard R. Jaskol, its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and attested by Mary Adamwoicz, its Secretary, to be executed by its duly authorized officer on this~~ ____ day of _____, ~~2014~~2015.

~~ATTEST:~~LYDALL, INC.

~~Mary Adamowicz~~ Leonard R. Jaskol
~~Secretary~~ Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Name:

Title: